
Benefices Sub (Culture, Heritage & Libraries) 
Committee

Date: WEDNESDAY, 23 OCTOBER 2019
Time: 3.00 pm
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL

Members: Andrew McMurtrie (Chair)
Simon Duckworth (Deputy Chairman)
Caroline Haines
Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines
Ann Holmes
Deputy Wendy Hyde (Ex-Officio Member)
Deputy Jamie Ingham Clark
Alderman Gregory Jones QC
Graham Packham (Ex-Officio Member)
Deputy Richard Regan
James de Sausmarez
Ian Seaton

Enquiries: Chloe Rew 
 tel. no.: 020 7332 1427
chloe.rew@cityoflondon.gov.uk

N.B. Part of this meeting may be subject to audio-visual recording. 

John Barradell
Town Clerk

Public Document Pack



AGENDA

Part 1 - Public Agenda

1. APOLOGIES

2. DECLARATIONS BY MEMBERS OF ANY PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL 
INTERESTS IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA

3. MINUTES
To agree the public minutes and non-public summary of the previous meeting held 5 
June 2019.

For Decision
(Pages 1 - 4)

4. PATRONAGE OF BENEFICES EXPLANATORY DOCUMENT
Explanatory document of the Archbishop’s Council Draft Legislation Reform 
(Patronage of Benefices) Order.

For Information
(Pages 5 - 18)

5. UPDATE ON CONNECTING BENEFICES WITH CITY OF LONDON SCHOOLS
Chair to be heard.

For Information

6. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB-
COMMITTEE

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
MOTION – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

For Decision
Part 2 - Non-public Agenda

9. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES
To agree the non-public minutes of the previous meeting held 5 June 2019.

For Decision
(Pages 19 - 22)



3

10. VISITS TO THE VARIOUS BENEFICES
Members of the Sub-Committee to be heard.

For Information
11. UPDATE ON FUNDING REQUESTS

Town Clerk to be heard.

For Information
12. UPDATE ON RECENT APPOINTMENTS

Chair to be heard.

For Information
(Pages 23 - 28)

13. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB-
COMMITTEE

14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH 
THE SUB-COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED



This page is intentionally left blank



BENEFICES SUB (CULTURE, HERITAGE & LIBRARIES) COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 5 June 2019 

Minutes of the meeting of the Benefices Sub (Culture, Heritage & Libraries) 
Committee held at the Guildhall EC2 at 11.30 am

Present

Members:
Andrew McMurtrie (Chair)
Simon Duckworth (Deputy Chairman)
Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines

Deputy Wendy Hyde (Ex-Officio Member)
Deputy Jamie Ingham Clark
Graham Packham (Ex-Officio Member)

Officers:
Chloe Rew - Town Clerk's Department
Vicki Wells - Comptroller & City Solicitors

1. APOLOGIES 
Apologies were received from Caroline Haines, Ann Holmes, Alderman Greg 
Jones, Deputy Richard Regan, James de Sausmarez and Ian Seaton.

2. DECLARATIONS BY MEMBERS OF ANY PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL 
INTERESTS IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA 
Simon Duckworth and Deputy Jamie Ingham Clark declared an interest as 
Members of the Guild Church Council of St Lawrence Jewry.

3. SUB-COMMITTEE'S TERMS OF REFERENCE 
Members noted the Sub-Committee’s Terms of Reference.

4. ELECTION OF A CHAIRMAN 
Members elected a Chairman in accordance with Standing Order no. 29.

RESOLVED – that, being the only Member willing to serve, Andrew McMurtrie 
be elected as Chair of the Benefices Sub-Committee for 2019/20.

5. ELECTION OF A DEPUTY CHAIRMAN 
Members elected a Deputy Chairman in accordance with Standing Order no. 
30. Alderman Gregory Jones and Simon Duckworth expressed a willingness to 
serve. A ballot was therefore conducted, and the results were as follows:

Votes
Simon Duckworth 6
Alderman Gregory Jones 0

RESOLVED – that, Simon Duckworth be elected Deputy Chairman of the 
Benefices Sub-Committee for 2019/20.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



6. MINUTES 
The public minutes of the previous meeting held 4 March 2019 were agreed as a 
correct record. 

7. NEW MEMBERSHIP 
The Chair welcomed new Members, Deputy Richard Regan and Simon 
Duckworth, to the Sub-Committee.

8. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB-
COMMITTEE 
There were no questions.

9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
The Chair noted that a Member suggested that all Benefices should be 
acquainted with King Edward’s and Christ’s Hospital Schools which give 
boarding education to under-privileged children. It was noted that the 
Benefices, given their role in their local communities, would be able to identify 
children in their communities who may benefit from this type of education. The 
Committee Clerk will circulate information to the Benefices’ Vicars.

10. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
RESOLVED – that, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Item Paragraph
8 3
9 1 & 2

10-12 3
13 1 & 2

11. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
The non-public minute of the previous meeting held 4 March 2019 were agreed, 
subject to two amendments.

12. ST PETER’S BETHNAL GREEN 
Members considered a report of the Town Clerk & Chief Executive relative to St 
Peter’s Bethnal Green.

13. BENEFICES SURVEY 
Members discussed the responses to a survey sent to the various Benefices 
following the last meeting.

14. QUERY REGARDING CHURCH COMMISSIONER APPOINTMENT 
Members discussed correspondence with the City Solicitor regarding the City 
Corporation’s right to appoint a Church Commissioner.

Page 2



15. VISITS TO THE VARIOUS BENEFICES 
Members discussed their respective visits to the various Benefices.

16. RECRUITMENT UPDATE 
Members heard an update from the Chair relative to recruitment.

17. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB-
COMMITTEE 
There was one question.

18. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE SUB-COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 
There was one item of urgent business.

The meeting closed at 12:37 pm

Chair

Contact Officer: Chloe Rew 
tel. no.: 020 7332 1427
chloe.rew@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



GS 2128X 

 

 

THE ARCHBISHOPS’ COUNCIL 

 

DRAFT LEGISLATIVE REFORM (PATRONAGE OF BENEFICES) ORDER 

 

EXPLANATORY DOCUMENT 

 

 

Laid before the General Synod 

pursuant to section 5 of the Legislative Reform Measure 2018 

 

 

 

 

The draft Legislative Reform (Patronage of Benefices) Order has been prepared by 

the Archbishops’ Council following a consultation on proposals that was carried out 

from November 2018 to January 2019.  Having considered the responses to the 

consultation, the majority of which were in favour of the proposals, the Council 

considers that it would be appropriate to proceed with the making of an order.  The 

Archbishops’ Council has accordingly laid the draft Legislative Reform (Patronage of 

Benefices) Order before the General Synod, together with this explanatory 

document, under section 5 of the Legislative Reform Measure 2018.   

  

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

1 
 

THE ARCHBISHOPS’ COUNCIL 

DRAFT LEGISLATIVE REFORM (PATRONAGE OF BENEFICES) ORDER 

EXPLANATORY DOCUMENT 

 

Background 

1. The Legislative Reform Measure 2018 enables the Archbishops’ Council (“the 

Council”), with the approval of the General Synod and subject to Parliamentary 

oversight, to make orders removing or reducing burdens that result from 

ecclesiastical legislation (known as “Legislative Reform Orders”).  In this 

context, “burden” means a financial cost, an administrative inconvenience or an 

obstacle to efficiency.  The power to make orders and other related provision is 

set out in section 1 of the Legislative Reform Measure. 

2. On 1st November 2018 the Council issued a consultation document on 

proposals for a Legislative Reform Order to remove or reduce burdens of a 

procedural nature that arise from the Patronage (Benefices) Measure 1986 

(“the 1986 Measure”).  The consultation period ended on 24 January 2019.  

The Archbishops’ Council – acting through its Legislative Reform Committee – 

has considered the responses to the consultation. 

3. In the light of the responses to the consultation, the Council considers that it is 

appropriate to proceed with the making of an order under the Legislative 

Reform Measure.  As required by section 5 of that Measure, the Council has 

laid a draft of the Legislative Reform (Patronage of Benefices) Order (“the draft 

Order”) before the General Synod together with this explanatory document. 

The Consultation 

4. The Archbishops’ Council carried out the consultation on proposals for the draft 

Order in accordance with section 4 of the Legislative Reform Measure.  The 

consultation document is reproduced at Annex A.  Paragraph 69 of the 

consultation document lists those who were consulted. 

5. Ninety responses to the consultation were received and all stakeholder groups 

were represented.  A list of those who responded to the consultation can be 

found at Annex B.   

6. Of the responses, eight were from members of the General Synod, 24 were 

from patrons (including the Crown, diocesan boards of patronage and 

patronage societies), 11 were from diocesan registrars, 19 were from dioceses, 

diocesan secretaries and other senior diocesan staff, nine were from 

archdeacons, four were from bishops and seven were from cathedrals. 

Responses were also received from organisations, individual clergy, 

churchwardens, members of parochial church councils and parishioners. 

Page 6



 

2 
 

7. Annex C provides detailed summaries of the responses received in respect of 

each of the proposals contained in the consultation. 

Proposal 1: Commencement of the process for filling a vacancy 

8. The first proposal related to the delay in the commencement of the process for 

filling a vacancy and there were two questions. The questions asked were:  

• Do you agree that significant delay in the commencement of the process for 

filling a vacancy should normally be avoided? 

• Does the mechanism set out in proposal 1 provide a suitable means of 

avoiding unnecessary delay? 

9. The majority of respondents answered the first question in the affirmative.  Two 

did not agree with the proposition that delay in the commencement of the 

process for filling a vacancy should normally be avoided. 

10. The majority of respondents also answered the second question in the 

affirmative.  Seven respondents did not agree that the mechanism proposed 

would provide a suitable means of avoiding unnecessary delay. Responses 

which disagreed with the proposal did so because: 

• They felt that a delay can be helpful in some occasions; 

• It was felt that there shouldn’t be a need for the Bishop to give notice of a 

vacancy; 

• The announcement of the vacancy should be given within a week of the 

announcement of a retirement/resignation, unless there are clear grounds 

for delaying this process, which must be stated to the parish. 

11. There were a number of other suggestions raised in response. These included:  

• that the draft timetable should be based on the resignation date rather than 

the date of the vacancy,  

• the relevant provision should specify that the designated officer should 

notify the patron, 

• the vacancy should be announced at such a time to enable an incumbent to 

be appointed within one year of the benefice becoming vacant,  

• consideration of what should happen if the Bishop fails to give notice as 

required, leading to the possibility for the patron or other interested party to 

give notice if the Bishop has failed to do so within 14 days  

• the Bishop is already under a duty to give notice before the vacancy occurs 

under section 7(2), why will Bishops be more compliant with this new 

proposal? 

• the Bishop should have the option to pause proceedings after the start date 

• there should be clarity over the roles of the Bishop, patron and the parochial 

church council, which should be communicated to the parish 

• the question was raised about whether delays in announcing vacancies 

were a result of financial challenges. 

Page 7



 

3 
 

12. The Legislative Reform Committee did not consider that any of the points 

raised called proposal one into question. 

13. The Committee had pointed out in the consultation paper that in special cases, 

where there was a particular, good reason for delay, the bishop could exercise 

the power to impose a suspension or restriction on the right of presentation. 

14. It was necessary for someone to trigger the process for filling a vacancy and 

there was no obvious candidate for that other than the bishop. 

15. It was not feasible for a statutory timetable to be based on the announcement 

of a retirement or resignation as there would be legal uncertainty as to what 

constituted an “announcement” for this purpose. 

16. If a bishop failed to comply with the proposed new requirements as to the 

commencement of the process for filling a vacancy, that would amount to 

misconduct for which the bishop would be liable to proceedings under the 

Clergy Discipline Measure 2003. 

Proposal Two: Procedures for parochial church councils  

17. The second proposal related to simplifying the procedures for parochial church 

councils and their secretaries.  It proposed amending the timeframe for 

parochial church councils to carry out their duties, providing a single maximum 

period of six months, beginning with the ‘start date’ to hold the section 11 

meetings and section 12 meetings.  

18. In response, the majority agreed with the proposal. However, there were fifteen 

respondents that felt that six months was too long and could lead to further 

delay in the process.  

19. There were also a number of other suggestions:  

• Is there a need for separate Section 11 and Section 12 meetings?  

• There were some respondents who suggested that the timeframe should 

be extended to nine months in exceptional circumstances, whereas others 

suggested that the maximum time should be three months or four months. 

20. The Legislative Reform Committee considered that there was a need for 

separate section 11 and section 12 meetings.  It was important that a parochial 

church council should be able to discuss and come to a mind about matters 

such as the “conditions, needs and traditions of the parish” without the patron 

and bishop (or their representatives) being present. 

21. Noting the different views as to the time required for the processes under 

section 11 and section 12 to be carried out, the Legislative Reform Committee 

remained of the view that a period of six months should be allowed.  The 

Committee wished to emphasise that this was a maximum period and the steps 

required by sections 11 and 12 should be carried out within a shorter period 

where that was feasible.  The Order has been drafted to reflect this (see article 

3(1)). 

Page 8



 

4 
 

Proposal Three: Time period before lapse 

22. Proposal three built on proposals one and two, and suggested that if these 

were implemented, the 12 month period before lapse occurs should run from 

the start date. 

23. In response, the majority agreed with the proposals. There were a number of 

responses that suggested that the time period should be 18 months or 15 

months rather than the suggested 12 months.  

24. Some respondents questioned the provisions under which rights of patronage 

lapse if not exercised within the time allowed, and suggested that there should 

be a process which would enable there to be a ‘pause’ in the lapse process.  

25. The Legislative Reform Committee noted the responses.  It had particular 

regard to concerns – of which members of the Committee were themselves 

aware – that it was not unusual for a vacancy to have to be advertised several 

times before an appointable – or even any – candidate emerged. 

26. The Committee accordingly accepted that the proposal in relation to lapse 

should be modified, so that a right of patronage would lapse to the bishop or 

archbishop after a period of 18 months if it had not been exercised within that 

time. 

Proposal Four: Joint Patronage: informing other patrons that a turn is being taken  

27. The fourth proposal suggested that where patronage was exercised by different 

patrons by turns, the registrar should inform the patrons with subsequent turns 

that a turn was being taken. In addition, the registrar should ask the patrons to 

provide updated contact details.  

28. There were two respondents who disagreed with this proposal, as they felt that 

this would be an additional administrative burden on registrars. 

29. There were suggestions that the patronage register should be public, such as 

being placed on the diocesan website. 

30. A number of respondents questioned the use of patronage by turns and 

suggested that this should be replaced by joint patronage.  

31. The Legislative Reform Committee noted the concern about imposing 

additional duties on the registrar.  It considered that if the proposed notification 

of other patrons simply became part of the procedure for giving notices at the 

commencement of the procedure for filling a vacancy, that would not result in 

significant additional work for the designated officer. 

32. In fact section 7(4) of the 1986 Measure (designated officer to send notice of 

vacancy to registered patron and parochial church council secretary), read with 

section 39(1) (interpretation), already requires the designated officer to send 

the notice of vacancy to all of the registered patrons for the benefice, not just 

those whose turn it is to present.  The form in general use for this notice 

distinguishes between “the registered patron(s)” and “the presenting patron”.  

Page 9



 

5 
 

However, as this was not immediately clear from section 7, the draft Order 

spells out the requirement to send the notice to all of the registered patrons 

(see article 2(7)).  

Proposal Five: Joint Patronage: joint patron to be able to appoint another joint patron 

to act 

33. The fifth proposal suggested that where patronage is exercised jointly, a joint 

patron should be able to nominate one of the other patrons to act on their 

behalf.  

34. In response, this proposal was largely supported, however there were some 

questions and comments raised as follows: 

• Should the provision be limited so that only the Bishop could act on behalf of 

other patrons?  

• How would this work in practice when there are patrons with different 

traditions and churchmanship?  

• There were concerns raised about how the nominated patron would act when 

voting takes place. Would the nominee have two votes?  

• There should be a clear written procedure for doing this. 

• The importance of this remaining ‘voluntary’ was highlighted and the risk of 

patrons being pressurised to relinquish their role was raised. 

• There was a request for a time limit on the nomination of one patron to act on 

behalf of the others. 

• It was suggested that there should be the opportunity for non-patrons to be 

nominated to act on behalf of the patron. 

35. The Committee did not consider that only the bishop should be able to act on 

behalf of other patrons, noting that the bishop might not be a patron.  The 

power to appoint another of the joint patrons to act on a patron’s behalf was 

intended to be voluntary and in the discretion of the appointing patron. 

36. The response concerned with how voting would work seemed to be based on a 

misunderstanding of joint patronage.  Where patronage is exercisable jointly by 

two or more patrons, a presentation can be made only if all those patrons 

agree; the issue of voting does not arise. 

37. The Committee did not consider that a patron should be able to appoint 

someone who was not a patron to act, as this would complicate matters by 

introducing more rather than fewer persons in the process. 

38. The Committee agreed that such an appointment, and the revocation of any 

such appointment, should be in writing. 

Page 10



 

6 
 

Proposal Six: using email 

39. This proposal suggested that the Measure be amended to enable email to be 

used for sending documents required by the Measure. 

40. There was only one respondent who disagreed with this proposal. They felt that 

the use of email could lead to error, misdirection and confusion.  

41. Otherwise, this proposal was welcomed but some respondents suggested that 

a number of safeguards should be included. These included the following:  

• the designated officer should be required to record that notices have been 

acknowledged by the recipients and interested parties to mitigate messages 

being lost in spam filters or other security software. 

• there needs to be appropriate storage 

• there needs to be a mechanism for ensuring that proper signatures have 

been used 

42. A number of respondents raised the question of GDPR compliance 

43. It was proposed that there should still be the possibility for not using email, to 

prevent the disenfranchisement of those that do not use electronic 

communications.  

44. The Legislative Reform Committee did not consider that any special statutory 

requirements should be imposed in relation to email communications.  No such 

requirements were imposed as to sending documents by post – which could 

also be lost.  As a matter of law, a typed signature on an email was treated as 

the signature of the person who typed it. 

45. The proposal to permit the use of email did not raise any special issues in 

relation to data protection that do not apply to the use of the post. 

46. The proposal is that electronic communication should be permissible where a 

person had provided an email address.  A person would not be obliged to do 

so, in which case communication would continue to be by post. 

Multi-Parish Benefices 

47. The consultation document did not make proposals for amending existing 

provisions relating to multi-parish benefices, however respondents were invited 

to comment on any further improvements which could reduce burdens.   

48. Respondents suggested the following:  

• Reducing the number of representatives to be appointed by each parochial 

church council as the appointment of two by each council can lead to 

unwieldy interview panels. 

• The importance of training for parish representatives was raised. 

• A number of respondents emphasised the importance of clear guidance 

Page 11



 

7 
 

49. So far as the first point was concerned, the Legislative Reform Committee 

noted that it was already open to the parochial church councils of a multi-parish 

benefice to decide to appoint just one representative for each parochial church 

council.  Alternatively, they may leave it to the churchwardens of the parishes in 

the benefice to choose not more than five of their number to act as parochial 

representatives.  There is therefore already considerable scope in the 

legislation as it stands that enables a small number of parochial representatives 

to be chosen for a multi-parish benefice. 

50. One set of proposals which was outside the scope of a Legislative Reform 

Order proposed wholesale changes to the process in relation to filling 

vacancies in multi-parish benefices.  (See further below.) 

Guidance  

51. There were five comments in relation to guidance welcoming improved 

guidance.  One response said that guidance should not be used to cover 

ground that ought to be dealt with in the legislation itself. 

52. The Legislative Reform Committee noted that revising the guidance on 

appointments would be taken forward by the Remuneration and Conditions of 

Service Committee of the Archbishops’ Council in due course. 

Other responses 

53. One substantial set of detailed responses was received.  While it made 

responses to specific proposals in the consultation paper, it argued that the 

1986 Measure should not be amended by Legislative Reform Order on the 

basis that a much more wide-ranging review of the 1986 Measure was required 

which could not be carried out using the order making power conferred by the 

Legislative Reform Measure. 

54. A number of other responses also included proposals that were outside the 

scope of a Legislative Reform Order. 

55. Those proposals were, by their nature, outside the remit of the Legislative 

Reform Committee which has delegated to it the functions of the Archbishops’ 

Council under the Legislative Reform Measure.  Whether or not there is merit in 

the wider ranging proposals was not a matter for the Committee to determine.  

Those proposals do not affect the view of the Committee that the proposals that 

were consulted on and which were widely supported should be given effect by 

a Legislative Reform Order, subject to the modifications noted above. 

Page 12



 

8 
 

The draft Order 

Article 1 

56. Article 1 provides for the citation, commencement and interpretation of the 

Order.  It is proposed to come into force on 1st January 2020 to allow time for 

the order to be approved by the General Synod and laid before Parliament.  

The proposed commencement date should also provide time for relevant 

guidance to be issued. 

Article 2 

57. Article 2 gives effect to proposal one in the consultation which was concerned 

with avoiding delay in the commencement of the process for filling a vacancy in 

a benefice.  It amends section 7 of the 1986 Measure, which is concerned with 

the giving of notices that trigger that process.  It also gives effect, in modified 

form, to proposal four which was concerned with the giving of notice to patrons 

who have subsequent turns that a turn is being taken. 

58. Article 2 would remove or reduce burdens as defined by section 1 of the 

Legislative Reform Measure by significantly reducing the scope for delay in the 

commencement of the process for filling a vacancy and thereby removing an 

obstacle to efficiency.  See paragraphs 16 to 18 of the consultation document.  

It would also assist in maintaining contact with patrons who have subsequent 

turns and help in keeping their contact details up to date, thereby reducing 

administrative inconvenience when subsequent vacancies arise. 

59. Article 2(3) substitutes two new subsections for section 7(2) of the 1986 

Measure.  The new subsection (2) applies where a benefice becomes vacant 

by resignation or cession (i.e. where the incumbent of a benefice is appointed a 

diocesan bishop and the benefice is vacated as a result).  The bishop must give 

notice of the vacancy – and thereby trigger the process for filling it – not later 

than the day on which the vacancy occurs.  The new subsection (2) therefore 

prevents the bishop from delaying giving notice of the vacancy – and triggering 

the process for filling it – beyond the day on which the benefice becomes 

vacant.  The bishop retains a discretion to give the notice on an earlier date 

under new subsection (2A). 

60. New subsection (2A) is also concerned with the case where a benefice 

becomes vacant by resignation or cession.  It enables the bishop to give the 

notice at any time after the bishop becomes aware that the benefice is shortly 

to become vacant (because, e.g., the incumbent has given the bishop written 

notice of resignation).  The bishop, therefore, does not need to wait until the 

benefice is vacant before triggering the process for filling it. 

61. Article 2(6) inserts a new subsection (4A) in section 7 of the 1986 Measure.  It 

sets out the information that must be included in the notice that is sent by the 

designated officer to the patron(s) and the secretary of the parochial church 

council. 

Page 13



 

9 
 

62. That information must include the “start date”.  The start date provides the date 

from which two periods of time begin to run: the period of six months for holding 

section 11 and section 12 meetings, and the period of 18 months after which 

the right of patronage lapses to the bishop or archbishop if it has not been 

exercised by the patron.  The start date must either be the date on which the 

designated officer sends the notice to the patron and secretary of the parochial 

church council, or – if the bishop so directs – a date not more than three 

months after the beginning of the vacancy. 

63. The notice from the designated officer must also include information about the 

procedure for filling the vacancy. 

64. Article 2(7) makes it clear that when the designated officer gives the notice of 

the vacancy to the patron and secretary of the parochial church council, it must 

also be sent to other patrons who have subsequent turns to present to the 

benefice.  When doing so, the designated officer must ask them to provide an 

email address and other contact details. 

65. The other provisions of article 2 make consequential amendments. 

Article 3 

66. Article 3 gives effect to proposal two in the consultation.  That proposal was 

concerned with simplifying the procedures that have to be followed by parochial 

church councils and their secretaries by providing a single maximum period of 

six months, beginning with the start date, for the holding of section 11 and 

section 12 meetings. 

67. Article 3 would remove or reduce burdens as defined by section 1 of the 

Legislative Reform Measure by simplifying the complex set of deadlines the 

parochial church council currently has for fulfilling its various functions under 

sections 11 and 12 of the 1986 Measure, allowing enough time for those 

functions to be exercised effectively, and thereby removing an obstacle to 

efficiency and reducing the administrative inconvenience involved.  See 

paragraphs 28 to 31 of the consultation document. 

68. Article 3(1) amends section 11 of the 1986 Measure so that section 11 

meetings are held “as soon as practicable after the start date” and “in any event 

before the end of the period of six months beginning with that date”.  This is 

intended to make it clear that parochial church councils should carry out their 

duties in a timely way, with six months being the maximum period allowed for 

them to do so. 

69. Article 3(2) amends section 12 of the 1986 Measure so that where a meeting 

under that section is requested it too must be held within the period of six 

months beginning with the start date. 

70. The other provisions of article 3 make consequential amendments. 

Page 14



 

10 
 

Article 4 

71. Article 4 gives effect to proposal three but in the modified form agreed by the 

Legislative Reform Committee.  The original proposal was that the period 

before lapse occurs should be 12 months beginning with the start date.  The 

Committee has taken the view that a longer period of 18 months should be 

allowed for the reasons given above in paragraph 26. 

72. Article 4 would remove or reduce burdens as defined by section 1 of the 

Legislative Reform Measure by ensuring that there is a reasonable amount of 

time to identify a suitable candidate for presentation to a vacant benefice before 

lapse occurs.  The occurrence of lapse represents an administrative 

inconvenience and an obstacle to efficiency because it involves changing the 

procedure for, and those involved in, making an appointment part of the way 

through the process.  Allowing a longer period will reduce the occurrence of 

lapse and thereby remove that administrative inconvenience. 

73. Article 4 amends section 16 of the 1986 Measure so that patronage lapses to 

the bishop or archbishop if it has not been exercised within 18 months of the 

start date. 

74. It also makes amendments to the headings that relate to section 16 and a 

consequential amendment to Schedule 2 to the 1986 Measure. 

Article 5 

75. Article 5 gives effect to proposal five in the consultation: that where patronage 

is exercised jointly, a joint patron should be able to appoint one of the other 

joint patrons to act on his or her behalf. 

76. Article 5 would remove or reduce burdens as defined by section 1 of the 

Legislative Reform Measure by enabling a reduction in the number of 

individuals who have to be involved in making a presentation to a vacant 

benefice and thereby remove an administrative inconvenience and an obstacle 

to efficiency. 

77. Article 5 inserts a new section 20A in the 1986 Measure which gives a joint 

patron the power to appoint another joint patron to act on his or her behalf in 

respect of a vacancy. 

78. In order to be eligible to appoint or be appointed, a joint patron must either have 

made the declaration of membership of the Church of England required by 

section 8 of the 1986 Measure or be acting through a representative under that 

section.  If a joint patron is acting through a representative, then it is the 

representative who makes the appointment or is appointed under new section 

20A. 

79. Where a joint patron is appointed to act on behalf of another joint patron under 

section 20A, he or she takes the place of the appointing patron in deciding 

whether to agree to present a priest for appointment to the benefice and 

exercises the appointing patron’s other statutory functions. 

Page 15



 

11 
 

80. An appointment under section 20A may be revoked but without affecting any 

steps that have already been taken prior to revocation. 

81. An appointment, and any revocation of an appointment, under section 20A 

must be made in writing. 

Article 6 

82. Article 6 gives effect to proposal six in the consultation.  That proposal was that 

the 1986 Measure be amended to enable email to be used. 

83. Article 6 would remove or reduce burdens as defined by section 1 of the 

Legislative Reform Measure by reducing the administrative inconvenience of 

having to use the post to send documents where a person was content to 

receive them by email. 

84. Article 6 amends section 37 of the 1986 Measure so that notices and other 

documents may be sent by post or by sending them to an email address which 

a person has provided and not withdrawn.  If a person does not provide an 

email address, or withdraws an email address and does not provide another 

one, communications will have to be sent to that person by post. 

Article 7 

85. Article 7 updates various references in the 1986 Measure to other legislation. 

Article 8 

86. Article 8 is made in reliance on section 9(2)(b) of the Legislative Reform 

Measure.  It applies the amendments made by articles 2 to 6 to the Isle of Man 

subject exceptions, adaptations and modifications that are set out in 

paragraphs (2) to (4) of article 8.  This is so that the amendments made by the 

Order take account of relevant Isle of Man legislation. 

Article 9 

87. Article 9 makes transitional provision so that the amendments made by articles 

2 to 4 of the order do not apply in the case of a vacancy in a benefice which 

arose before 1st January 2020 or in respect of which the process for filling the 

vacancy has been commenced under section 7 of the 1986 Measure before 

that date.  This is to ensure that the procedure for filling a vacancy that is 

already under way is not affected by the amendments made by the Order. 

Preconditions 

88. The Council is satisfied that the conditions in section 2 of the Legislative 

Reform Measure are (so far as relevant) satisfied for the following reasons. 

89. The policy objective of each of the proposals contained in the consultation (as 

modified) could not be satisfactorily secured by non-legislative means because 

they relate to matters which are either currently the subject of statutory 

Page 16



 

12 
 

provision in the 1986 Measure which is incompatible with the proposals, or 

which require the making of new provision in the 1986 Measure to give effect to 

them. 

90. Each of the substantive provisions of the draft Order is directly related to the 

policy objective to which it gives effect and goes no further than is necessary to 

give effect to it.  Accordingly the Council considers that the effect of each of the 

provisions is proportionate to the policy objective to be secured by it. 

91. As indicated in the consultation paper, there are no proposals that change the 

substantive rights of patrons, parochial church councils or bishops.  The 

changes are procedural.  The procedural changes made by the draft Order are 

considered to achieve a fair balance between the different interests involved in 

making appointments to vacant benefices by ensuring that each of the persons 

involved knows what their respective responsibilities are and are given 

adequate time to fulfil them.  The Council does not consider that any person is 

adversely affected by any of the provisions.  The Council accordingly considers 

that each provision of the draft Order satisfies the requirement that it strike a 

fair balance between the public interest, the interest of the Church of England 

as a whole and the interests of any person who is adversely affected by it.   

92. The provisions of the draft Order do not concern the removal of any protection, 

do not affect financial benefits and do not prevent the exercise of any right or 

freedom. 

93. As the provisions of the draft Order are concerned only with procedural matters, 

and do not affect the relationship of the Church with the Sovereign or the state, 

the Council does not consider that they are of constitutional significance. 

 

Simon Butler 

Chair of the Legislative Reform Committee 

on behalf of the Archbishops’ Council 

March 2019 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Document is Restricted

Page 19

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Patronage of Benefices Explanatory Document
	9 Non-Public Minutes
	12 Update on Recent Appointments

